

**YOUNG ADULT: WHAT AM I RATED? BY MEREDITH HARDT  
SUBMISSION FROM ILLINOIS**

*Summary: Social media darlings run the country and appearances are everything. Dying for fame, or desperate to escape the superficial society, teen suicide becomes an epidemic. Raelyn watches as everyone she loves abandons her society for a Rebel colony. Everything isn't as it seems; secrets lie beneath the society's beautiful veneer.*

**Commented [SD1]:** I don't think you need this last sentence. That's implied already; plus, since it follows "Rebel colony" I was expecting a statement about the Rebel colony so I think it's misplaced. I would delete.

Raelyn swiped a ~~lazy~~ finger across the screen of her personal communication device. An expectant ding wiped the glaze from her eyes, and a grin spread across her face.

**Commented [SD2]:** Pretty name

She had another hit on her Rate Me account. Squealing, she tapped the screen—her finger jumping like a spring—and a 3D holographic image appeared in front of her. "What am I rated?"

**Commented [SD3]:** Use em dashes (we have a blog about em dashes vs en dashes vs hyphens-check out [www.writersinfusion.com](http://www.writersinfusion.com))

Her fuchsia-tressed virtual assistant announced the good news: "You are rated thirteenth. You have 403 new rates. Would you like to view them?"

Raelyn held her breath and crossed her fingers, excitement and nervousness battling as she readied herself for the critiques to come.

**Commented [SD4]:** Tighten this up—you don't need so many descriptors

Raelyn looks amazing in those stellar new turquoise contacts.

Raelyn has obviously been working hard with her lipo tech. If she keeps thinning her thighs and lifting her butt, she could beat out Twila for #1!!

Has Raelyn even looked at her 360 holo? If she did, she'd never wear that black FabTech jumpsuit.

**Commented [SD5]:** Use a different font or something so that these stand out. I didn't realize they were "rates" until Raelyn started speaking.

"Seriously? What a bitch." Raelyn waved away the holo, cursing the raters under her breath. With a deep inhale, she shook her hair out, as though shaking away the criticism. She

**YOUNG ADULT: WHAT AM I RATED? BY MEREDITH HARDT**  
**SUBMISSION FROM ILLINOIS**

bounced off the bed and checked her reflection in the mirror. Her eyes flicked over her face and she smiled; the smile fell away when her gaze reached her thighs.

Sighing, she pressed a button on the PCD, ~~and~~ donned a suggestive smile, and froze in place as it took a full 360-degree picture of her. A quick tap and the picture appeared on her Rate Me account. A glance at the 360 **confirmed** what the raters had said. She did need to work on her butt. They hadn't even mentioned her arms, but her gaze zeroed in on the untuned flab of her triceps. Her heart fell; she'd never be number one looking like this.

"Raelyn, breakfast," Emmaline's voice beckoned from the kitchen. Raelyn rolled her eyes and cracked her neck. She wanted nothing more in life than to make it to number one, to be the top-rated teen female, and Emmaline knew it. No matter how often Raelyn tried, she couldn't get her mom on board the Rate Me bandwagon. If she couldn't join in her excitement, Raelyn wished Emmaline would, at least, keep her opinions to herself.

"I don't say anything about your awful sweatsuits and stupid braid, even though it is super embarrassing," she grumbled under her breath. Despite Raelyn's efforts, she couldn't convince Emmaline to care even a little about trends. It was unfortunate, because she had a great **body** for a mom- and could be in the top one hundred if she just tried. Even worse, she wasn't even on Rate Me. It had crossed Raelyn's mind that they weren't actually related—, maybe she had been switched at birth.

She left her room, passing her parents' bedroom on the way to the kitchen. Her father sat at the weight bench; hard at work, as usual, lifting weights in front of the full wall mirror. Rated thirty-sixth in his division, he was the father every girl wished she had. It was obvious that most of her DNA came from him; ~~like, the~~ The desire for public admiration was ingrained in their double helices, and neither could resist the siren song of popularity. He waved to her reflection

**Commented [SD6]:** So she took the screenshot and everyone could see it? Would she want that, if she's trying to see how she looks? Can't she take the picture and only see for herself?

**Commented [SD7]:** Use em dashes when separating out a phrase like this (look under Insert\Symbol in Word)

**YOUNG ADULT: WHAT AM I RATED? BY MEREDITH HARDT**  
**SUBMISSION FROM ILLINOIS**

and she grinned. Their eyes met for a second before hers darted back to her PCD and the high of another rate from a stranger.

A ping from her best friend pulled her attention from the rates. "Rae, I saw you're up to thirteen. I made it to 998 this morning. I know you've gotta be so hyped and you know I could use it, so let's celebrate with a trip to the lipotech—~~. your~~ Your treat."

Raelyn laughed. Of course, Hayli would suggest she pay; Raelyn was the one with a government sponsorship. So long as she stayed in the top 100, they'd continue to give her enough digipoints to get all the lipo she, and Hayli, could ever want. Raelyn pinged Hayli back and agreed to meet at her apartment before heading to the lipotech.

"Sorry, Mom," Raelyn yelled toward the kitchen as she slipped out the door, "I have to meet Hayli. I'll see you tonight."

Raelyn pressed the button and absentmindedly watched the screen next to the elevator doors as she waited for them to part. It pictured a perfectly flat and toned stomach with the words "Don't waste another minute, get the body you've always dreamed of today. Lipotechs are now open 24 hours a day for your convenience." The car arrived, and she stepped on, taking the elevator down to Hayli's floor.

Hayli was pacing outside her apartment when Raelyn arrived. She stopped and looked at her PCD with a frown.

"You ready?" Raelyn asked.

Without bothering to respond, she glanced up and declared, "Rae, you have to help me. Look at my 360 and pick the worst of my problem areas. Some of the raters say I should do my hips first, but others think my triceps need the most work. Tell me the truth, what do you think?"

**YOUNG ADULT: WHAT AM I RATED? BY MEREDITH HARDT  
SUBMISSION FROM ILLINOIS**

Raelyn circled her, her mouth pursed as she tapped a finger to her lips. "They're both right, but you'll have to pick one first. So, I guess I'd say your hips. If you choose your triceps, then you shouldn't wear the FabTech mini dress. It'll only highlight the extra fat around your hips."

Hayli's face fell and tears formed in the corners of her eyes. Raelyn winced, ~~she~~ She hated to hurt her friend's feelings, but feelings were disposable, and rates weren't. Besides, she'd asked for the truth. All Raelyn had done was give it.

Hayli's shoulders drooped and she turned her attention back to her PCD, this time checking the daily Obitz. Line after line of the names of 'cidars scrolled past.

"This is so sad," Hayli said. "I can't believe so many teens our age killed themselves last night. And, ~~that's those are only~~ the successful ones, ~~who~~ Who knows how many more 'cidars are in the hospital?:"

"It is sad, but it's not our problem." Raelyn examined her magenta nail polish, wrinkling her nose when she spotted a chip. "I don't know why anyone would do that. They literally have everything they could want. All the time in the world with nothing else to do but make themselves into who they want to be, and they want to throw it all away?" She shook her head. "Frankly, it's wasteful, and a slap in the face to the government that's given us so much."

"Maybe that's just it. Maybe they want to be more than popular." Hayli's eyes clouded. "Maybe they want to live for more than a stranger's rates. Every day, I thin here and I push up there. I follow the trends, upload my holo, but there's always something else they find for me to change. It's like the scarf trick in a magician's act, ~~you~~ You pull out one scarf and find an unending series of scarves in its place."

**YOUNG ADULT: WHAT AM I RATED? BY MEREDITH HARDT**  
**SUBMISSION FROM ILLINOIS**

Hayli tucked her chin and stared down at the floor, avoiding eye contact with Raelyn.

"I'm starting to think I'll never be good enough for the raters or myself." Hayli said. "Even the best, the top ten, get told they need more work. The government jumps in and gives plastic surgery sponsorships. Even the perfect aren't good enough."

Raelyn rolled her eyes. "You can sulk if you want, but I'm not gonna let those depressing low-rated 'cidars spoil my day." She turned and headed back for the elevator. "Come on, Hayli, let's go melt some fat."

Hayli wiped her eyes and followed her friend down to the first floor and into the lipo tech suite. It was only nine in the morning, but there was already a line out the door. In anticipation of a wait, the girls joined the line and, like the teens around them, tapped open their PCDs.

Raelyn clicked open Rate Me and spent a few minutes sizing up the competition. She peeked at Hayli behind her, and the girl in front of her, to be sure no one was watching, before down-rating the top ten to lift her numbers.

"Look at her." Raelyn tilted her PCD toward Hayli. "Twila's still number one. And, not that I'd want to, but even if I did, I couldn't think of anything to down-rate her about." A scowl darkened Raelyn's face.

Twila Edwards had held the top spot since the day she turned sixteen, almost eighteen months prior. Perfectly-arched eyebrows floated over sparkling crystal blue eyes, giving the appearance of an untold joke. Her luminous raven hair and porcelain skin made her look like a doll come to life. All that, combined with the flawless body beneath, and it was no wonder she was number one. Raelyn fumed; to defeat Twila and take the top spot for herself, she'd need to change just about everything about herself.

And she was prepared to do it.

**Commented [SD8]:** I wasn't sure who was talking here at first so I added this.

**YOUNG ADULT: WHAT AM I RATED? BY MEREDITH HARDT  
SUBMISSION FROM ILLINOIS**

This is a really interesting premise for a story. I think you've got something good here. I would tighten up the language up front a bit-keep an eye on how many adjectives you use in the opening of the story. Many times, you don't need them.

I like that you have a likeable character (Hayli) up front, because right now I don't think much of Raelyn 😊. That obviously allows for character development, though. I think what might help here would be including the mother in the opening scene. Raelyn – right now – doesn't seem like someone we could like, but if we met her mother and saw that one parent had good qualities, we could keep that underneath, thinking maybe there's hope for Raelyn at some point. Just something that hints she could change-a tiny hint but a hint nonetheless. Otherwise-you've got a good story here and I'd be interested in reading more if you'd like to share.

**Summary: Social media darlings run the country and appearances are everything. Dying for fame, or desperate to escape the superficial society, teen suicide becomes an epidemic. Raelyn watches as everyone she loves abandons her society for a Rebel colony. Everything isn't as it seems; secrets lie beneath the society's beautiful veneer.**

-you effortlessly create this world and move us through it.  
-well-written  
-so now!

Raelyn swiped a lazy finger across the screen of her personal communication device. An expectant ding wiped the glaze from her eyes and a grin spread across her face.

slang or abbreviation! let us figure it out  
[put a grin on her face?]  
tap-tap-tapped

make "Rate Me" a word

She had another hit on her Rate Me account. Squealing, she tapped the screen-her finger jumping like a spring- and a 3D holographic image appeared in front of her. "What am I rated?"

name?

Her fuchsia-tressed virtual assistant announced the good news: "You are rated thirteenth. You have 403 new rates. Would you like to view them?"

Raelyn held her breath and crossed her fingers, excitement and nervousness battling as she readied herself for the critiques to come.

format differently

Raelyn looks amazing in those stellar new turquoise contacts.

really? they use complete sentences with everything spelled correctly?

Raelyn has obviously been working hard with her lipo tech. If she keeps thinning her thighs and lifting her butt, she could beat out Twila for #1!!

Has Raelyn even looked at her 360 holo? If she did, she'd never wear that black FabTech jumpsuit.

"Seriously? What a bitch." Raelyn waved away the holo, cursing the raters under her breath. With a deep inhale, she shook her hair out, as though shaking away the criticism. She

bounced off the bed and checked her reflection in the mirror. Her eyes flicked over her face and she smiled; the smile fell away when her gaze reached her thighs.

-sorry, but really suggest redoing as first-person: need that voice!  
-also, read Clockwork Orange. or watch clueless.  
-too many semicolons: change to periods



## YOUNG ADULT: WHAT AM I RATED? BY MEREDITH HARDT

Sighing, she pressed a button on the PCD and donned a suggestive smile and froze in place as it took a full 360-degree picture of her. A quick tap and the picture appeared on her Rate Me account. A glance at the 360 confirmed what the raters had said: She did need to work on her butt. They hadn't even mentioned her arms, but her gaze zeroed in on the untoned flab of her triceps. Her heart fell; she'd never be number one looking like this.

"Raelyn, breakfast," Emmaline's voice beckoned from the kitchen. Raelyn rolled her eyes and cracked her neck. She wanted nothing more in life than to make it to number one, to be the top-rated teen female, and Emmaline knew it. No matter how often Raelyn tried, she couldn't get her mom on board the Rate Me bandwagon. If she couldn't join in her excitement, Raelyn wished Emmaline would, at least, keep her opinions to herself.

"I don't say anything about your awful sweatsuits and stupid braid, even though it is super embarrassing," she grumbled under her breath. Despite Raelyn's efforts, she couldn't convince Emmaline to care even a little about trends. It was unfortunate because she had a great body - for a mom - and could be in the top one hundred if she just tried. Even worse, she wasn't even on Rate Me. It had crossed Raelyn's mind that they weren't actually related, maybe she had been switched at birth.

She left her room, passing her parents' bedroom on the way to the kitchen. Her father sat at the weight bench; hard at work, as usual, lifting weights in front of the full wall mirror. Rated thirty-sixth in his division, he was the father every girl wished she had. It was obvious that most of her DNA came from him, like the desire for public admiration was ingrained in their double helices, neither could resist the siren song of popularity. He waved to her reflection and she grinned. Their eyes met for a second before hers darted back to her PCD and the high of another rate from a stranger.



## YOUNG ADULT: WHAT AM I RATED? BY MEREDITH HARDT

#13  
80s Hayli nabbed yanked  
A ping from her best friend pulled her attention from the rates. "Rae, I saw you're up to thirteen. I made it to 998 this morning. I know you've gotta be so hyped and you know I could use it, so let's celebrate with a trip to the lipotech- your treat."

Raelyn laughed. Of course, Hayli would suggest she pay; Raelyn was the one with a government sponsorship. So long as she stayed in the top 100, they'd continue to give her enough digipoints to get all the lipo she, and Hayli, could ever want. Raelyn pinged Hayli back and agreed to meet at her apartment before heading to the lipotech.

"Sorry, Mom," Raelyn yelled toward the kitchen as she slipped out the door, "I have to meet Hayli. I'll see you tonight."

Raelyn pressed the button and absentmindedly watched the screen next to the elevator doors as she waited for them to part. It pictured a perfectly flat and toned stomach with the words "Don't waste another minute, get the body you've always dreamed of today. Lipotechs are now open 24 hours a day for your convenience." The car arrived, and she stepped on, taking the elevator down to Hayli's floor.

Hayli was pacing outside her apartment when Raelyn arrived. She stopped and looked at her PCD with a frown.

"You ready?" Raelyn asked.

Without bothering to respond, she glanced up and declared, "Rae, you have to help me. Look at my 360 and pick the worst of my problem areas. Some of the raters say I should do my hips first, but others think my triceps need the most work. Tell me the truth, what do you think?"

Raelyn circled her, her mouth pursed as she tapped a finger to her lips. "They're both right, but you'll have to pick one first. So, I guess I'd say your hips. If you choose your triceps,

more complete sentences, perfectly spelled - no explanation points???

**YOUNG ADULT: WHAT AM I RATED? BY MEREDITH HARDT**

then you shouldn't wear the FabTech mini dress. It'll only highlight the extra fat around your hips." <sup>o</sup>

Hayli's face fell and tears formed in the corners of her eyes. Raelyn winced, she hated to hurt her friend's feelings, but feelings were disposable, and rates weren't. Besides, she'd asked for the truth. All Raelyn had done was give it. <sup>why? she asked for opinion</sup> <sup>exactly</sup>

Hayli's shoulders drooped and she turned her attention back to her PCD, this time checking the daily Obitz. Line after line of the names of 'ciders scrolled past. "This is so sad. I can't believe <sup>no one would say this / slang</sup> so many teens our age killed themselves last night. And, that's only the successful ones, who knows how many more 'ciders are in the hospital?" <sup>make back + forth dialog</sup>

"It is sad, but it's not our problem." Raelyn examined her magenta nail polish, wrinkling her nose when she spotted a chip. "I don't know why anyone would do that. They literally have everything they could want. All the time in the world with nothing else to do but make themselves into who they want to be, and they want to throw it all away?" She shook her head. <sup>not teenager has th. is perspective</sup>

"Frankly, it's wasteful, and a slap in the face to the government that's given us so much."

"Maybe that's just it. Maybe they want to be more than popular." Hayli's eyes clouded.

"Maybe they want to live for more than a stranger's rates. Every day, I thin here and I push up there. I follow the trends, upload my holo, but there's always something else they find for me to change. It's like the scarf trick in a magician's act, you pull out one scarf and find an unending series of scarves in its place." <sup>no one would say this / slang</sup>

Hayli tucked her chin and stared down at the floor, avoiding eye contact with Raelyn.

"I'm starting to think I'll never be good enough for the raters or myself. Even the best, the top ten, get told they need more work. The government jumps in and gives plastic surgery <sup>Scholarships</sup> sponsorships. Even the perfect aren't good enough."

few people are so self-aware

## YOUNG ADULT: WHAT AM I RATED? BY MEREDITH HARDT

Raelyn rolled her eyes. "You can sulk if you want, but I'm not gonna let those depressing low-rated 'cidars spoil my day." She turned and headed back for the elevator. "Come on, Hayli, let's go melt some fat."

Hayli wiped her eyes and followed her friend down to the first floor and into the lipo tech suite. It was only nine in the morning, but there was already a line out the door. In anticipation of a wait, the girls joined the line and, like the teens around them, tapped open their PCDs.

Raelyn clicked open Rate Me and spent a few minutes sizing up the competition. She peeked at Hayli behind her, and the girl in front of her, to be sure no one was watching, before down-rating the top ten to lift her numbers.

"Look at her." Raelyn tilted her PCD toward Hayli. "Twila's still number one. And, not that I'd want to, but even if I did, I couldn't think of anything to down-rate her about." A scowl darkened Raelyn's face.

Twila Edwards had held the top spot since the day she turned sixteen almost eighteen months <sup>before</sup> prior. Perfectly-arched eyebrows floated over sparkling crystal blue eyes giving the appearance of an untold joke. Her luminous raven hair and porcelain skin made her look like a doll come to life. All that combined with the flawless body beneath, and it was no wonder she was number one. Raelyn fumed; to defeat Twila and take the top spot for herself, she'd need to change just about everything about herself, and she was prepared to do it.

## YOUNG ADULT: WHAT AM I RATED? BY MEREDITH HARDT

### [Jenn's feedback](#)

*Summary: Social media darlings run the country and appearances are everything. Dying for fame, or desperate to escape the superficial society, teen suicide becomes an epidemic. Raelyn watches as everyone she loves abandons her society for a Rebel colony. Everything isn't as it seems; secrets lie beneath the society's beautiful veneer.*

Raelyn swiped a lazy finger across the screen of her personal communication device. An expectant ding wiped the glaze from her eyes and a grin spread across her face.

She had another hit on her Rate Me account. Squealing, she tapped the screen, her finger jumping like a spring- and a 3D holographic image appeared in front of her.

"What am I rated?" [she asked.](#)

Her fuchsia-tressed virtual assistant announced the good news. "You are rated thirteenth. You have 403 new rates. Would you like to view them?"

Raelyn held her breath and crossed her fingers, excitement and nervousness battling as she readied herself for the critiques to come.

Raelyn looks amazing in those stellar new turquoise contacts.

Raelyn has obviously been working hard with her lipo tech. If she keeps thinning her thighs and lifting her butt, she could beat out Twila for #1!!

Has Raelyn even looked at her 360 holo? If she did, she'd never wear that black FabTech jumpsuit.

"Seriously? What a bitch." Raelyn waved away the holo, cursing the raters under her breath. With a deep inhale, she shook her hair out, as though shaking away the criticism. She

**Commented [RJL1]:** Use an em dash with no spaces. Not a hyphen. See our blog on the use of em dashes, en dashes and hyphens.

**Commented [RJL2]:** Make these clear that they are messages. Maybe indent them more or put them in italics.

## YOUNG ADULT: WHAT AM I RATED? BY MEREDITH HARDT

bounced off the bed and checked her reflection in the mirror. Her eyes flicked over her face and she smiled; the smile fell away when her gaze reached her thighs.

Sighing, she pressed a button on the PCD and donned a suggestive smile and froze in place as it took a full 360-degree picture of her. A quick tap and the picture appeared on her Rate Me account. A glance at the 360 confirmed what the raters had said. She did need to work on her butt. They hadn't even mentioned her arms, but her gaze zeroed in on the untuned flab of her triceps. Her heart fell; she'd never be number one looking like this.

"Raelyn, breakfast," Emmaline's voice beckoned from the kitchen. Raelyn rolled her eyes and cracked her neck. She wanted nothing more in life than to make it to number one, to be the top-rated teen female, and Emmaline knew it. No matter how often Raelyn tried, she couldn't get her mom on board the Rate Me bandwagon. If she couldn't join in her excitement, Raelyn wished Emmaline would, at least, keep her opinions to herself.

"I don't say anything about your awful ~~sweatsuits~~sweat suits and stupid braid, even though it is super embarrassing," she grumbled under her breath. Despite Raelyn's efforts, she couldn't convince Emmaline to care even a little about trends. It was unfortunate because she had a great body—for a mom—and could be in the top one hundred if she just tried. Even worse, she wasn't even on Rate Me. It had crossed Raelyn's mind that they weren't actually related, maybe she had been switched at birth.

She left her room, passing her parents' bedroom on the way to the kitchen. Her father sat at the weight bench; hard at work, as usual, lifting weights in front of the full wall mirror. Rated thirty-sixth in his division, he was the father every girl wished she had. It was obvious that most of her DNA came from him; like the desire for public admiration was ingrained in their double helices, neither could resist the siren song of popularity. He waved to her reflection and she

**Commented [RJL3]:** Cliché. Find an original way to show how he felt.

**Commented [RJL4]:** Is Emmaline her mom?

## YOUNG ADULT: WHAT AM I RATED? BY MEREDITH HARDT

grinned. Their eyes met for a second before hers darted back to her PCD and the high of another rate from a stranger.

A ping from her best friend pulled her attention from the rates. "Rae, I saw you're up to thirteen. I made it to 998 this morning. I know you've gotta be so hyped and you know I could use it, so let's celebrate with a trip to the lipotech—your treat."

Raelyn laughed. Of course, Hayli would suggest she pay; Raelyn was the one with a government sponsorship. So long as she stayed in the top 100, they'd continue to give her enough digipoints to get all the lipo she, and Hayli, could ever want. Raelyn pinged Hayli back and agreed to meet at her apartment before heading to the lipotech.

"Sorry, Mom," Raelyn yelled toward the kitchen as she slipped out the door, "I have to meet Hayli. I'll see you tonight."

Raelyn pressed the button and absentmindedly watched the screen next to the elevator doors as she waited for them to part. It pictured a perfectly flat and toned stomach with the words, "Don't waste another minute, get the body you've always dreamed of today. Lipotechs are now open 24 hours a day for your convenience." The car arrived, and she stepped on, taking the elevator down to Hayli's floor.

Hayli was pacing outside her apartment when Raelyn arrived. She stopped and ~~frowned~~~~looked~~ at her PCD ~~-with a frown-~~.

"You ready?" Raelyn asked.

Without bothering to respond, ~~she~~Hayli glanced up and declared, "Rae, you have to help me. Look at my 360 and pick the worst of my problem areas. Some of the raters say I should do my hips first, but others think my triceps need the most work. Tell me the truth, what do you think?"

## YOUNG ADULT: WHAT AM I RATED? BY MEREDITH HARDT

Raelyn circled her, her mouth pursed as she tapped a finger to her lips. "They're both right, but you'll have to pick one first. So, I guess I'd say your hips. If you choose your triceps, then you shouldn't wear the FabTech mini dress. It'll only highlight the extra fat around your hips."

Hayli's face fell and tears formed in the corners of her eyes. Raelyn winced, she hated to hurt her friend's feelings, but feelings were disposable, and rates weren't. Besides, she'd asked for the truth. All Raelyn had done was give it.

Hayli's shoulders drooped and she turned her attention back to her PCD, this time checking the daily Obitz. Line after line of the names of 'cidars scrolled past. "This is so sad. I can't believe so many teens our age killed themselves last night. And, that's only the successful ones, who knows how many more 'cidars are in the hospital."

"It is sad, but it's not our problem." Raelyn examined her magenta nail polish, wrinkling her nose when she spotted a chip. "I don't know why anyone would do that. They literally have everything they could want. All the time in the world with nothing else to do but make themselves into who they want to be, and they ~~want to~~ throw it all away?" She shook her head. "Frankly, it's wasteful, and a slap in the face to the government that's given us so much."

"Maybe that's just it. Maybe they want to be more than popular." Hayli's eyes clouded. "Maybe they want to live for more than a stranger's rates. Every day, I thin here and I push up there. I follow the trends, upload my holo, but there's always something else they find for me to change. It's like the scarf trick in a magician's act, you pull out one scarf and find an unending series of scarves in its place."

Hayli tucked her chin and stared down at the floor, avoiding eye contact with Raelyn. "I'm starting to think I'll never be good enough for the raters or myself. Even the best, the top



## YOUNG ADULT: WHAT AM I RATED? BY MEREDITH HARDT

ten, get told they need more work. The government jumps in and gives plastic surgery sponsorships. Even the perfect aren't good enough."

Raelyn rolled her eyes. "You can sulk if you want, but I'm not gonna let those depressing low-rated 'ciders spoil my day." She turned and headed back for the elevator. "Come on, Hayli, let's go melt some fat."

Hayli wiped her eyes and followed her friend down to the first floor and into the lipo tech suite. It was only nine in the morning, but there was already a line out the door. In anticipation of a wait, the girls joined the line and, like the teens around them, tapped open their PCDs.

Raelyn clicked open Rate Me and spent a few minutes sizing up the competition. She peeked at Hayli behind her, and the girl in front of her, to be sure no one was watching, before down-rating the top ten to lift her numbers.

"Look at her." Raelyn tilted her PCD toward Hayli. "Twila's still number one. And, not that I'd want to, but even if I did, I couldn't think of anything to down-rate her about." A scowl darkened Raelyn's face.

Twila Edwards had held the top spot since the day she turned sixteen almost eighteen months prior. Perfectly-arched eyebrows floated over sparkling crystal blue eyes giving the appearance of an untold joke. Her luminous raven hair and porcelain skin made her look like a doll come to life. All that combined with the flawless body beneath, and it was no wonder she was number one. Raelyn fumed; to defeat Twila and take the top spot for **herself**, she'd need to change just about everything **about herself**, and she was prepared to do it.

[I love this. Reminds me of Scott Westerfeld's "The Uglies" series, which I loved.](#)

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

JULIE

## YOUNG ADULT: WHAT AM I RATED? BY MEREDITH HARDT

**Summary: Social media darlings run the country and appearances are everything. Dying for fame, or desperate to escape the superficial society, teen suicide becomes an epidemic. Raelyn watches as everyone she loves abandons her society for a Rebel colony. Everything isn't as it seems; secrets lie beneath the society's beautiful veneer.**

Raelyn <sup>lazily</sup> swiped a ~~finger~~ across the screen of her personal communication device. An expectant ding wiped the glaze from her eyes and a grin <sup>curved</sup> spread across her face. m d zed

She had another hit on her Rate Me account. Squealing, she tapped the screen- her finger jumping like a spring- and a 3D holographic image appeared in front of her. "What am I rated?"

Her fuchsia-tressed virtual assistant announced the good news: "You are rated thirteenth. You have 403 new rates. Would you like to view them?"

Raelyn held her breath and crossed her fingers, excitement and nervousness battling as she readied herself for the critiques to come.

Raelyn looks amazing in those stellar new turquoise contacts.

Raelyn has obviously been working hard with her lipo tech. If she keeps thinning her thighs and lifting her butt, she could beat out Twila for #1!!

Has Raelyn even looked at her 360 holo? If she did, she'd never wear that black FabTech jumpsuit.

"Seriously? What a bitch." Raelyn waved away the holo, cursing the raters under her breath. With a deep inhale, she shook her hair out, as though shaking away the criticism. She bounced off the bed and checked her reflection in the mirror. Her eyes flicked over her face and she smiled; the smile fell away when her gaze reached her thighs.

JULIE

## YOUNG ADULT: WHAT AM I RATED? BY MEREDITH HARDT

verb  
choice

Sighing, she pressed a button on the PCD and donned a suggestive smile and froze in place as it took a full 360-degree picture of her. A quick tap and the picture appeared on her Rate Me account. A glance at the 360 confirmed what the raters had said. She did need to work on her butt. They hadn't even mentioned her arms, but her gaze zeroed in on the untoned flab of her triceps. Her heart fell; she'd never be number one looking like this.

"Raelyn, breakfast," Emmaline's voice beckoned from the kitchen. Raelyn rolled her eyes and cracked her neck. She wanted nothing more in life than to make it to number one, to be the top-rated teen female, and Emmaline knew it. No matter how often Raelyn tried, she couldn't get her mom on board the Rate Me bandwagon. If she couldn't join in her excitement, Raelyn wished Emmaline would, at least, keep her opinions to herself.

"I don't say anything about your awful sweatsuits and stupid braid, even though it is super embarrassing," she grumbled under her breath. Despite Raelyn's efforts, she couldn't convince Emmaline to care even a little about trends. It was unfortunate because she had a great body for a mom and could be in the top one hundred if she just tried. Even worse, she wasn't even on Rate Me. It had crossed Raelyn's mind that they weren't actually related, maybe she had been switched at birth.

She left her room, passing her parents' bedroom on the way to the kitchen. Her father sat at the weight bench; hard at work, as usual, lifting weights in front of the full wall mirror. Rated thirty-sixth in his division, he was the father every girl wished she had. It was obvious that most of her DNA came from him; like the desire for public admiration was ingrained in their double helices, neither could resist the siren song of popularity. He waved to her reflection and she grinned. Their eyes met for a second before hers darted back to her PCD and the high of another rate from a stranger.

JULIE

YOUNG ADULT: WHAT AM I RATED? BY MEREDITH HARDT

Not really.

A ping from her best friend pulled her attention from the rates. "Rae, I saw you're up to thirteen. I made it to 998 this morning. I know you've gotta be so hyped and you know I could use it, so let's celebrate with a trip to the lipotech—your treat."

m deal

Raelyn laughed. Of course, Hayli would suggest she pay; Raelyn was the one with a government sponsorship. So long as she stayed in the top 100, they'd continue to give her enough digipoints to get all the lipo she, and Hayli, could ever want. Raelyn pinged Hayli back and agreed to meet at her apartment before heading to the lipotech.

"Sorry, Mom," Raelyn yelled toward the kitchen as she slipped out the door, "I have to meet Hayli. I'll see you tonight."

When/what does she eat? Why tonight? What do they do all day? Teens? Parents?

Raelyn pressed the button and absentmindedly watched the screen next to the elevator doors as she waited for them to part. It pictured a perfectly flat and toned stomach with the words "Don't waste another minute, get the body you've always dreamed of today. Lipotechs are now open 24 hours a day for your convenience." The car arrived, and she stepped on, taking the elevator down to Hayli's floor.

Hayli was pacing outside her apartment when Raelyn arrived. She stopped and looked at her PCD with a frown.

"You ready?" Raelyn asked.

Without bothering to respond, she glanced up and declared, "Rae, you have to help me. Look at my 360 and pick the worst of my problem areas. Some of the raters say I should do my hips first, but others think my triceps need the most work. Tell me the truth, what do you think?"

Raelyn circled her, her mouth pursed as she tapped a finger to her lips. "They're both right, but you'll have to pick one first. So, I guess I'd say your hips. If you choose your triceps,

Howe her look at the 360 hold - not real life

JULIE

## YOUNG ADULT: WHAT AM I RATED? BY MEREDITH HARDT

then you shouldn't wear the FabTech mini dress. It'll only highlight the extra fat around your hips."

Hayli's face fell and tears formed in the corners of her eyes. Raelyn winced, she hated to hurt her friend's feelings, but feelings were disposable, and rates weren't. Besides, she'd asked for the truth. All Raelyn had done was give it.

Wow!

Hayli's shoulders drooped and she turned her attention back to her PCD, this time checking the daily Obitz. Line after line of the names of 'ciders scrolled past. "This is so sad. I can't believe so many teens our age killed themselves last night. And, that's only the successful ones, who knows how many more 'ciders are in the hospital."

"It is sad, but it's not our problem." Raelyn examined her magenta nail polish, wrinkling her nose when she spotted a chip. "I don't know why anyone would do that. They literally have everything they could want. All the time in the world with nothing else to do but make themselves into who they want to be, and they want to throw it all away?" She shook her head. "Frankly, it's wasteful, and a slap in the face to the government that's given us so much."

"Maybe that's just it. Maybe they want to be more than popular." Hayli's eyes clouded. "Maybe they want to live for more than a stranger's rates. Every day, I thin here and I push up there. I follow the trends, upload my holo, but there's always something else they find for me to change. It's like the scarf trick in a magician's act, you pull out one scarf and find an unending series of scarves in its place."

interesting  
mology

Hayli tucked her chin and stared down at the floor, avoiding eye contact with Raelyn. "I'm starting to think I'll never be good enough for the raters or myself. Even the best, the top ten, get told they need more work. The government jumps in and gives plastic surgery sponsorships. Even the perfect aren't good enough."

Hum.

JULIE

YOUNG ADULT: WHAT AM I RATED? BY MEREDITH HARDT

Raelyn rolled her eyes. "You can sulk if you want, but I'm not gonna let those depressing low-rated 'ciders spoil my day." She turned and headed back for the elevator. "Come on, Hayli, let's go melt some fat."

Hayli wiped her eyes and followed her friend down to the first floor and into the lipo tech suite. It was only nine in the morning, but there was already a line out the door. In anticipation of a wait, the girls joined the line and, like the teens around them, tapped open their PCDs.

Raelyn clicked open Rate Me and spent a few minutes sizing up the competition. She peeked at Hayli behind her, and the girl in front of her, to be sure no one was watching, before down-rating the top ten to lift her numbers.

"Look at her." Raelyn tilted her PCD toward Hayli. "Twila's still number one. And, not that I'd want to, but even if I did, I couldn't think of anything to down-rate her about." A scowl darkened Raelyn's face.

Twila Edwards had held the top spot since the day she turned sixteen almost eighteen months prior. Perfectly-arched eyebrows floated over sparkling crystal blue eyes giving the appearance of an untold joke. Her luminous raven hair and porcelain skin made her look like a doll come to life. All that combined with the flawless body beneath, and it was no wonder she was number one. Raelyn fumed; to defeat Twila and take the top spot for herself, she'd need to change just about everything about herself, and she was prepared to do it.

Did that  
night's  
suicides  
bump  
Hayli  
in  
up  
the  
charts?  
Do they  
know  
anyone

why?

why?

VERY TIMELY AND TOPICAL SUBJECT.  
WHAT PROMPTED THE GOVERNMENT SPONSORSHIP?  
MORE ON RAEYN - age, eye color, hair color, siblings  
Does she go to school?  
Is this a typical weekday or weekend?  
Domestic by 9:00?  
Reminds me of Kardashians.  
I need to see more details of SOCIETY.